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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning, Members. This morning, I would like to
call the Public Works Committee meeting to order. This morning here with
us are Member Robert Carroll, Member Danny Mateo and Vice Chair
Member Michael Molina. Representing the staff is Lance Taguchi, Yvette
Bantilan and our new analyst, Mr. Jensen, good morning. And from the
Administration, we do have Cindy Young, Corporation Counsel and the
Public Works Director, Milton Arakawa. Members, this morning we have
three items on the agenda. If there's no objections, I would like to change
part of the agenda this morning to take up item number PW-9 at end of
calendar.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: No objections.

•
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Again, Members, this morning we have three
items on the agenda, PW-20, PW-9 and PW-30. At this time, I would like
to call for a public testimony on the three agenda items. People that are
testifying you have three minutes to testify; one minute to conclude. And
please state your name and the business that you represent this morning.
For members in the audience, if you could turn off your cell phone and
pagers either to the silent mode or turn it off, I would appreciate that.
Thank you very much. Okay, Members, this morning we have two people
signed up for testimony and at this time I would like to call on Mary
Cochran.
. .. BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . ..

MS. COCHRAN: Good morning and thank you very much for even considering
my request at least for restricted parking at Baldwin Avenue. I believe you
do have on file the letter that I've sent to former Chair Mike Molina and just
to for restatement is that I am pretty sure you guys have gone out there,
you know how congested it is and all we are asking for is the same rights
and privileges granted to those on lower Baldwin and on Hana Highway.
If there is any concern about enforcement all we are asking is for the
same enforcement rights they have given to those establishments
downtown. So thank you very much, please consider the letter I have
written to you guys and help our businesses out on upper Baldwin. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mary. Any questions for the testifier,
Members? If not, thank you very much. Second person signed up for
testimony is Jocelyn Perreira. Good morning, Jocelyn.
MS. PERREIRA: Good morning. Good morning Council Chair Pontanilla and
Councilmembers. My name is Jocelyn Perreira. I am the Tri-Isle Main
Street Program Coordinator. I am here this morning on behalf of the Paia
Main Street Association. Its Chair Deborah Schonewill had a conflicting
appointment with a client in Wailea this morning and could not be here, so
I am here to present their opinion on this matter, number PW-20.
Back in October, I believe it was, Councilman Kane did ask the Paia Main
Street Association to go back and take a look at what their position was
relative to this particular item as it relates to the total town and we did, and
we had discussions. We had discussions again in November and again in
January of this year. We, furthermore, the organization based their
opinions on this item relative to parking in Paia, not only from the opinions
of the Board members, the 15-member Board. But as a result of
comprehensive surveys that were conducted three times, once when we
did the strategic plan, once when we did the zoning and development
quote for Paia and one for the business capacity study that was done for
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Paia, so we feel very comfortable that we have some very opinions from a
very broad base group of the community.
We note that new and improved parking off-site is still needed for Paia
parking is very tight, as Mrs. Cochran had said. Part of the problem is the
sporadic COP enforcement. I believe that was stated at a prior meeting,
and we believe that whenever you do not have enforcement of existing
laws and rules and regs that's when. you know, people, things seem to go
awry and things are not properly enforced. We do want to continue
encouraging a walking town. It is vital to the life-blood of Paia. Small
towns rely on the ability for somebody to park and walk around and
discover and have lunch and do some business and so on and so forth.
The towns are built in a bygone era and they have more limited
infrastructure and they don't have some of the new modern amenities and,
therefore, if anybody is going to have a strong position in the marketplace,
they need the chance for people to come in to the town and discover, like I
say, the many things that the town has to offer. We think an employee
management plan is important because we note that some of the violators
are employees. This is not unlike what we have experienced in Wailuku in
the past and there has to be some ability to self police or get an
enforcement officer to be sure ... Mr. Taguma, Officer Taguma would
take down the names of the employees, and at least he would know who
was violating, if it was an employee continuing to park on those spaces.
We note that resident parking is occurring on the street especially at night,
which is making it very, very difficult for those who want to go to
restaurants like Moana's Cafe and other places, because I guess some of
the people, I guess it was reported that they were told that they can live
upstairs and they can park on the street, or what have you, and that is
certainly not supposed to be the case.
MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MS. PERREIRA: And I can conclude, thank you. So we believe that a two-hour
uniform parking restriction in town should be applied uniformly in town.
That we should not try to do one set of rules for one part of town, another
set of rules for another; and we just feel that the enforcement is very, very
necessary and the management plan should probably be put in place, and
continue to do whatever we can to help the businesses retain the
customer in town as long they can, and we believe this can be done if they
have two hour limits.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions? Member Molina.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:
Perreira.

Yeah, thank you, Chairman.

Good morning, Mrs.

.
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MS. PERREIRA: Good morning.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: When you say sporadic enforcement can you give me an
example of, is it like, maybe two times a week the police is coming around,
basically Monday through Fridays?
MS. PERREIRA: Yeah, you know there used to be better enforcement and the
Police Department really did attempt to do it more on a regular basis but
see, part of the key too is you do not want to have it where everybody
knows the policeman comes on Mondays and Wednesdays, you know,
and then we play this parking tag in town. Move your cars and move it
back, and so on and so forth. They used to have a better system and I
believe the last meeting that we had the police officers also were asked
about the sporadic enforcement. We had the Police Department here
about this, you know, catch them off guard and go sporadically and check
and make sure that they are in compliance, that they are following the
rules. Ever since we didn't have the COP officer that was assigned to
Paia, you know, there's been problems and there are difficulties in town,
it's not only with parking there is, you know, as you know, crime
prevention, situations that are occurring and what not. I know that the
Police Department says that they're understaffed and that seems to be the
case for far too long but I think if could get the community-oriented police
officer back in town doing what he is supposed to do, all of these other
things. The parking situation would improve and the town would have an
additional safety measure in place immediately.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: One more question, Chair. How would you suggest the
employee management plan occur as if, would it be for example through
the Main Street and maybe other associations coming together and
formulating some type of plan? How would you suggest that occur?
MS. PERREIRA: I do not know how other associations would be involved if they
do not have broad base coverage of the employees in town. I would
certainly say that I do not think that anyone group should necessarily do
that except maybe to present an overall management plan for employees
but I do think the self policing has to be by the individual owner. What
Main Street can do is have discussions, enter into discussions with some
of the property owners or some of the lessees and see what kind of
incentives they can give their employees for parking off-site and walking to
where they need to go to work, for instance, or you know they can come
up with creative ideas if they need to carpool, perhaps to work, or if there
is some sort of situation like that, I think that would be something that if
you would like to ask the Paia Main Street Association to come up with
some kind of an employee management plan. I certainly can talk with
Cindy Nagata, Hank Scam and Edward Stewart from Anthony's Coffee,
and I think that is something that they would be very willing to try to work,
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you know, work on together and have discussions with some of the other
merchants in town.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Good morning, Chairman. Good morning, Mrs.
Perreira.
MS. PERREIRA: Hi.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Then at this particular point the multiple meetings
that were held to discuss this particular item one of your recommendations
with what Mr. Molina was referencing, the employee management plan,
that was just something that was thrown out and not actually discussed at
this particular point?
MS. PERREIRA: No, because part of the different studies and surveys that I was
alluding to did not go into a comprehensive discussion about employees
per se. It was just more overall what is the benefit for the town of Paia.
We certainly know that parking is an issue, how do we bring more parking
and you know it really didn't focus in on employees until we started to see
some of the violations that made it difficult for businesses that were having
difficulty to get access for their own customers.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Another item, for consideration, I do not know
whether or not the, your Board, actually had a chance to kind of review it,
and that would perhaps be a citizens' patrol?
MS. PERREIRA: We have discussed citizens' patrol quite a bit in that particular
area for quite a time now and it doesn't seem to necessarily work in that
particular area. I don't know if it is because there are some reasons why,
you know, they are very concerned about the level of crime and fear for
their safety when they are walking the beat, whether or not they have the
right to, you know. By the time you waiting for the police, the police are
some time away and as you know, Paia has suffered from some very
dangerous types of situations so I know that there are, there is more
reluctance to participate in a citizen patrol.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So has the Paia Main Street organization have
they actually tried to address parking situations knowing that this area is
inundated with traffic and flow is quite difficult? And to add to the flow mix
you have got this extreme limitation of parking availability, so has the
organization taken a look at future sites or what recommendations have
they made in helping to address the parking needs?

,
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MS. PERREIRA: Paia Main Street has been hard at work for many, many years
now, looking at this in a variety of ways. Besides doing surveys and
having discussions with people there have been numerous kind of
strategies like talking to some property owners to see if we eliminated
certain on-street parking if that would help the situation for the traffic flow?
If we can replace some of that parking in some off-site street, off-street
parcels, and that's also been part of the studies that we've done that have
been brought to bear, and I feel very confident to tell you that the
merchants, the majority, the vast majority of merchants on the street, do
not want to have their parking replaced because it is part of their lifeblood. So removing parking on the street to smooth and make easier
traffic flow is not the solution. Part of the solution is a management, an
overall management, what do you do with employees because it seems to
be that the employees are part of the situation besides the tight parking.
So where do you put the employees, who come to work to park so you
have more available spaces along the street?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, and lastly Mr. Chair, has the organization
also had the opportunity of talking with the multiple businesses in this
specific area relative to what their potential loss is?
MS. PERREIRA: Thank you for that question because it's an excellent question
Councilman Mateo. There are losses if you lose parking in front of a
business. This went all the way back to Makawao as a matter of fact
when we were dealing with a situation in Makawao, losing some potential
parking stalls. And at that time we did come up with a figure of how much
per hour the business would lose from not having that potential parking
stall in front, fronting their business, so it is not just a question of we are
going to wipe out the stalls. That stall has a value not only to that
business but to the town, particularly if they come and they park and they
are going to shop, and you know, support the businesses, then it could be
quite a detriment.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, thank you. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Chairman. Mrs. Perreria, you know
Paia, as we know, has been getting a lot of national recognition both for
the windsurfing and I think now they even have a TV show that I guess
focuses on Paia Town I think it was that Warner Brothers' TV Station. Do
you, does your Association have a count currently of the businesses,
amount of businesses in Paia, and I do not know if you have been able to
do some type of estimate of the amount of people that frequent Paia Town
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during the typical, you know, Monday through Friday, do you have data or
statistics like that?
MS. PERREIRA: That's a very good question Councilman.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Because I think the long term for me as well I am looking
at ways we can get additional parking for the town. Can you share with us
as far as what you folks have or you know of any other entities that may
have.
MS. PERREIRA: I believe that Friday, I heard, I don't know if it happened but
you guys got transmitted the Paia strategic plan and along with that was
supposed to be the business capacity study so in the business capacity
study we looked at, you know, what kind of clientele is coming into town,
what is the desirability of the people, the merchants, the professionals, the
residents, as to how they want Paia to evolve as a community and what
kind of clientele they want to serve so all of that information is contained in
there.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you. Thank you Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you members. Any more questions for testifier? If
not, thank you very much, Jocelyn.
MS. PERREIRA: Thank you. We look forward to sharing that information with
you when you bring it up to agenda.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Are there any more people that want to
testify on any of the three agenda items that we have this morning? If not,
if there is no objections, Members, Chair would like to close public
testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS .
. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . ..

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much.

20

PARKING ON BALDWIN A VENUE (PAIA) (C.C. No. 04-183)

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, we have the first item, Public Works 20,
parking on Baldwin Avenue in Paia.
This is a result of County
Communication No. 04-183, transmitting a correspondence from Mary

,
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Cochran, President, Paia Plantation, Inc. requesting time-restricted
Also, correspondence dated
parking on Baldwin Avenue in Paia.
November 18, 2004 from the Public Works Director transmitting a
proposed bill entitled "A Bill for an Ordinance Amending Section
10.48.090, Maui County Code pertaining to limited parking 60 minutes. At
this time, I would like to call on the Director, Milton Arakawa, to give some
comments.
MR. ARAKAWA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. This item pertains to a request from Ms.
Mary Cochran who operates a business, Paia Plantation, Inc., at 115
Baldwin Avenue. This is located on the opposite side of Baldwin Avenue
just makai of the Paia Post Office. The County Code currently restricts
on-street parking to one hour on Baldwin Avenue from Hana Highway to
Pua Place and this restriction pertains to the period between 8:00 a.m. to
6:00 p.m, excluding Sundays and holidays. I should note that Pua Place
is a paper private street, which is located just mauka of the parking lot for
the Moana Bakery and Cafe. And also mauka of Pua Place, there are no
on-street parking restrictions.
Ms. Cochran's letter expresses concern that the lack of restricted hourly
parking is impacting her business and her letter notes that employees
from businesses located on makai portions of Baldwin Avenue park in
front of her business for the duration of their working hours. A bill for an
ordinance has been drafted which would restrict parking on the east side,
the Hana side of Baldwin Avenue, from Pua Place to Melia Place. The
proposal would extend the one-hour parking restriction for a distance of
approximately 400 feet on the east side only of Baldwin Avenue, and it is
noted that this proposed bill was reviewed by the Traffic Safety Council
and they had no recommendation on the matter. The committee's review
and consideration of the proposed bill is respectfully requested.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you Mr. Arakawa. Members, any questions for the
Director? Member Molina.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Arakawa, you know
in our recent walk through of the town, Mr. Pontanilla as well as Mr.
Taguchi, we noticed that the people we talked to were all in favor of some
type of restriction. I find it unusual that the Traffic Council would not even
give a recommendation. Do you have any insight as to why they have
given no recommendation? I am just curious if they were even, you know,
where they actually did a walk through of the town like we did. Do you
have any information off-hand as to why they didn't?
MR. ARAKAWA: All I know is they did consider it and they didn't feel that the
issue of parking restrictions was within their jurisdiction so they did not
offer a recommendation.
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VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, looking at the, you know, I guess we heard from
also complaints from certain businesses about site distances in the areas,
areas that are currently, I guess, restricted from having parking. Is there
any, I guess, recommendations from the Department to open up parking
on the, I guess, the street that will be on the side of the cane fields across
from, say for example, Ms. Cochran's business? You have those barriers,
I guess, there currently, is there a consideration to have those removed
and possibly free up additional parking on that side?
MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Molina, I believe the area you are referring to
is just makai of the Paia Post Office on the Kahului side of Baldwin
Avenue. That stretch there is an asphalt curb and there is a paved
shoulder which people seem to have been using as a sidewalk-walking
area. And in looking at the area there seems to be enough room to install
some sort of parallel parking along that particular shoulder. That would
result in additional, you know, on-street parking stalls for Paia. Of course,
the trade-off is that the walking area would then be displaced. If the
committee would consider that, however, I should note there is across the
Post Office, there is a crosswalk, and there is a sidewalk on the Hana side
of the street, so that is a consideration for this committee.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you. Thank you Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Chairman. And Mr. Arakawa, the
number of stalls that would be available would be what?
MR. ARAKAWA: I don't have that number but it's basically from just below the
Post Office to where the business district starts, that is on the Kahului
side, and I can get that number.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, and then if you could get that number, and
also if that is the option, then can you give us a timetable?
MR. ARAKAWA: In looking at it, you know, the shoulder is already partially
paved. There may be some work that we need to do on the embankment
on the Kahului side but I believe we could probably do that work in-house
so it would be fairly, it would be a fairly fast process. We don't have to go
through any kind of procurement or CIP for that so it could be done fairly
quickly.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Quickly, okay. And can you tell me, I guess, the
parking requirements below this area is two-hour parking?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, I believe part of Baldwin Avenue, the signs that we
saw was one hour.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: All one hour. Okay, so it would be directly the
Department's recommendation is consistent with what already exists?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Exactly.
MR. ARAKAWA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:
Chair.

Okay, okay thank you very much.

Thank you,

CHAIR PONTANILLA: I've got a question for the Director. This morning we
heard from Ms. Perreira in regards to the possibility of two hour parking.
But this morning we were considering a one-hour parking restriction for
this particular place between Pua and Melia Street. Maybe at a different
meeting, we'll take up the two hour parking as suggested by Ms. Perreira.
Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. I just had a
thought because local residents also have been parking on the street.
Has any communication occurred with those residents?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, none at all.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah, Chairman, do you have also, I know you were on
the Public Works, with Public Works Director right now, is there, do you
have the Police also to comment because I'm just thinking, you know, we
can debate whether it go one hour or two hours but the key is going to be
enforcement, and we can create all of the legislation and restrictions in the
world, but without the enforcement it might not mean anything but will the
Police be in today?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We had notified the Police Department as far as the
meeting that we are having this morning. I don't know if we notified them
in regards to this Baldwin Avenue plan, but we had indicated that they
should be here for the Kam III School request for restricted parking.
Lance.
MR. TAGUCHI: Thank you, Chair Hokama [sicl. We requested the Police
Department's presence. They did call on Friday and I believe they will be
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sending someone. In regards ... I need to check upon whether or not
they have been requested for this meeting, I believe they have, but I need
to check on it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine.
MR. TAGUCHI: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any more questions for the Director? Mr. Molina.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you. Mr. Arakawa, I guess following up, I believe
Member Mateo asked you earlier, looking at also Ms. Cochran's letter, as
well as comments made by Ms. Perreira, it would seem that two hours is
something that people could live with there. Any thoughts, additional
thoughts?
MR. ARAKAWA: No, not really. You know the issue of parking restrictions
basically is a matter to us of, you know, the business and community
preference and what would work for that particular community. So if, you
know, two hours is what would work for the community that would be fine
with us.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Can I have comments from Corporation Counsel in
regards to what is being discussed as far as the hour of restriction?
Because we had set this agenda item and the proposed amendment to
the ordinance is for one hour, can you comment on that?
MS. YOUNG: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, I believe the question is whether or not
a lengthy discussion regarding two hour parking would be, would comply
with the Sunshine Law. Your agenda item specifically refers to a bill for an
ordinance amending the provision that deals with 60 minutes limited
parking. So, I think some discussion could be had, but the agenda item is
pretty specific as to the bill being for 60 minutes limited parking.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. In regard ... I understand that Baldwin
Avenue is a County roadway and Hana Highway is a State highway. As
far as the jurisdiction, if we were to, at a future time change the one hour
parking on Hana Highway, do we have the capabilities of doing that?
I am going to call for a brief recess subject to the call of the Chair.
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

9:31 a.m.
9:40 a.m.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Members, for that brief recess. Okay, at this
time, Members any more questions for administration in regards to
PW-20? Member Molina.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Director, if we could
get, I guess, a cost analysis for, I guess, we are looking at, do we add this
restriction? We are looking at what two signs, and about how soon could
they come up if something were to be passed?
MR. ARAKAWA: The signs are basically formulated, you know, in-house, so we
just have to put in the sign order. We do have some backlog on the
amount of signage but I would say we can try to get that up, you know,
before the budget year ends.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Any more questions members? If not, at this time the
Chair would like to make a recommendation, if there's no objections. The
Chair would recommend approval of the proposed bill and filing of County
Communication No. 04-183.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So moved.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Second for discussion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Moved by Member Mateo, second by Member Molina.
Member Molina.
. . . (INTERRUPTION IN TAPE) ...

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No additional discussions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina:
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah, Chairman, I am somewhat perplexed a little bit
right now. We do have, I guess the person that brought up the concern,
the business owner, has stated they could live with either one or two hour.
And the motion on the floor right now is for one hour. I would be willing to
support your recommendation but with reservations at this time because I
do feel we need to get more input from the other business owners. My
understanding is, I guess, this is just to make it consistent with that of the
one hour parking below the area that we're talking about, but I think, for
me anyway, and I speak for myself, that we do need to allot a little bit
more time and look over the long-term having a uniform parking restriction
for the whole town rather than just piecemeal ling everything, and
something that is consistent. But being that Paia has become, as I
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mentioned earlier, a town that's becoming nationally known you're getting
more and more influx of tourists everyday, I think it's necessary that we
consider something more than one hour, and you know, from our walkthrough, we saw even one of those biking businesses parking off the
highway, technically illegally combined with you have people parking in
places they shouldn't be parking, along with the fact that we seem to have
a lack of enforcement at this time, possibly due to police shortages, I think
it adds more for the argument of finding additional parking for the town. I
think what Director Arakawa brought up earlier is something to consider.
The Kahului side across of where Ms. Cochran's business is at, as a
possible area for expanded parking and hopefully without any impacts on
people who need to use the sidewalk, as well. But I will support it at this
time with reservation, and it's my hope that after the budget session is
concluded that you can have a meeting on this, this communication not be
filed, or if you feel it more appropriate, that another separate item be
created to look at a uniform parking restriction for the whole town of Paia
and to consider the two hour that's been suggested, not only by Ms.
Cochran, but also Ms. Perreira from the Paia Main Street Association as
well. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Molina. It is the intention of the Chair to
revisit the two-hour restriction in regards to Paia Town, and it is going to
be done after the budget. And at that time we can address the items that
Member Molina had just provided us this morning in regards to not only
off-street parking but the uniformity of two-hour parking within the Paia
Town. Also we need to take a look at Hana Highway to make it uniform
also, and that's part of the State Highway Transportation Division. So at
this time the Chair will be filing County Communication and will create
another communication in regards to the total overall parking condition in
Paia Town. So, Members, with that, all in favor say ...
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: I'm sorry, sorry.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Second and last time on the motion. Also, if we could
get thoughts from the Traffic Council when that, when you do create this
separate item, as well, I think would be helpful to the process, and there's
something else I know I wanted to say. I cannot think of it right now but I
will probably communicate with you via written transmittal some of my
other suggestions that may be helpful to this matter, Mr. Chair. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you Member Molina. We will be transmitting
correspondence to the Traffic Council in regards to this item - parking in
Paia Town. So, Members, with that all in favor of the motion say aye.
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Anyopposed? Okay motion carried.
VOTE:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
EXC.:

Councilmember Carroll, Mateo, Vice-Chair
Molina, and Chair Pontanilla.
None.
None.
None.
Councilmember Hokama.

ACTION:

FIRST READING OF REVISED BILL AND FILING OF
COMMUNICATION

30

LOADING ZONE ON FRONT STREET (LAHAINA)
(C.C. No. 04-234)

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, at this time the Chair would like to bring
forward Public Works Communication 30, loading zone on Front Street,
Lahaina.
This is a result of County Communication No. 04-234,
transmitting a proposed bill to establish a tow-away zone between the
hours of 7:00 a.m. and 8:00 a.m. and between the hours of 1:00 p.m. and
2:30 p.m. in front of Kamehameha III Elementary School. Also, by
correspondence dated March 7, 2005, from the Director of Public Works,
is a revised proposed bill entitled "A Bill for an Ordinance to Amend
Section 10.56A.010 Maui County Code relating to loading zones". The
purpose of the proposed bill incorporates revisions to establishing a
loading zone. At this time, I would like to call on the Public Works Director
to provide us with information.
MR. ARAKAWA: Mr. Chairman, this item pertains to a proposal forwarded by the
principal of Kamehameha III School and a Lahaina District Police Officer.
This would establish a tow-away zone on the makai side of Front Street
adjacent to Kamehameha III School. Twelve parallel parking stalls in
length as a tow-away zone during each school day between the hours of
7:00 a.m. to 8:00 a.m., and 1:00 p.m. to 2:30 p.m. each school day.
The school informs parents of school children to utilize the public parking
lot across Front Street to park and walk their children across Front Street.
However, a number of parents illegally drop off their children, which
causes significant traffic congestion in the area. The proposed bill is
intended to greatly reduce the number of children crossing Front Street
and will make it safer and easier for parents to park and drop off or pick up
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their children. The committee's review and consideration of the proposed
bill is respectfully requested.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Arakawa. Members, any questions for
the Director?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, I think, once again, I think they need to
understand the enforcement component of this because this is an area
that is, the traffic use is extremely heavy and this is an area that a lot of
our visitors also park in as well. Now, if you have time restrictions
especially in the afternoon hours, there needs to be some kind of
enforcement so that those visitors parking there and walking Lahaina
Town actually does not come back and find their vehicles missing. So I
think it goes back to enforcement and if the Department can try to explain
to us or share information with us on how that will be addressed.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Arakawa
MR. ARAKAWA: Thank you. Councilmember Mateo, the parking stalls, the
parallel parking stalls there now are basically three-hour parking, and this
was a proposal that was forwarded by the school basically, and you are
correct.
I think the school's thought, and we had requested a
representative from the school be here today to discuss this with the
committee, but as I understand it, the school's rationale was that a number
of parents are actually stopping their cars within the travel lane along
Front Street, to either pick up or drop off their children, which leads to a
traffic backup behind there. So the thought was, if we can establish these
parallel parking stalls as a pick up and drop off area, then that will help
alleviate some of the traffic congestion along Front Street. It should not be
as big a problem in the morning area, in the morning time frame, but as
you've noted, enforcement is the key in the afternoon, and for that, I
believe that's why the school actually suggested that it be a tow-away
zone, to make it clear that if vehicles are in those stalls in the afternoon
period, that they would be towed away and, you know, if it's three hour
parking it could include visitors as well.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, so then I would also, I guess, expect some
of the school personnel to also be monitors in the area so parking would
not occur during morning and afternoon as well or are they looking at
police officers being there to handle the flow?
MR. ARAKAWA: I believe they are looking at primarily the police.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Chairman. Mr. Director, now the
parking stalls that we are talking about, are those the ones that have the
signs that are generally reserved for school personnel during the Monday
through Friday, you know, school hours? Are those the stalls that we are
talking about?
MR. ARAKAWA: No. The stalls you are referring to are the angle parking stalls,
which are actually on the school property. The stalls, the 12 parking stalls,
parallel parking stalls that we are referring to are three hour parking, which
are within the Front Street right-of-way.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Have you gotten any feedback from businesses as well?
Because earlier we talked about, you know, Paia Town and the concerns
businesses would have about losing parking. Have you gotten any
feedback from say like the West Maui Taxpayers Association, the Lahaina
Town Action Committee? Any comments from them?
MR. ARAKAWA: No, I have not.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: And I believe that Front Street has a shortage of parking
as well?
MR. ARAKAWA: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Chairman, is there any Police, are they here to
offer their comments on this matter as well?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, we notified the Police Department and,
unfortunately, the notification to the Police Department was received on
Friday and we tried calling this morning in regards to having a police
officer here and they said that they will try and send one. After the
questioning of the Public Works Director, the Chair intends to call a ten- to
15-minute recess ~o that we can try and get a police officer here to
answer some of these questions.
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Pontanilla.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Tuguchi.
MR. TAGUCHI: Yes, Councilmember Molina we did, upon posting, we did notify
and request the Department's presence. However, internally I guess the
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Police Department was notified yesterday at about ten, so they have
difficulty bringing, I guess, representatives here to discuss these matters.
I have just called the Police Department and requested, so I am not quite
sure whether or not they will be able to send anyone at this time, however,
maybe I can try and call again during the break.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Chairman, you know first of all I want to state,
you know, that we don't have anyone here from the school. I would think
this is something pretty important that they would send a representative
here to at least respond to questions from the committee. We don't have
the Police; we don't have comments from the businesses so just, you
know, to let you know ahead of time, I am uncomfortable about making a
decision at this time. Did we get any comments from the Traffic Council
on this as well?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Arakawa.
MR. ARAKAWA: No, I don't, hold on a second. No, I don't believe so.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: So, Chairman, I guess for me, being that we still don't
have some data or comments from the entities that we have just spoken
of, for one, I wouldn't want to make a decision on this today and we could
maybe look at this at a later time, whenever you deem it appropriate,
Chairman. I'm just letting you know my feelings now. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Question for the Director. In regards to this
request by Kamehameha III School, I guess this is important for the school
to have this so-called loading zone during the school days. Maybe at our
recess, if you could contact the school in regards to this here, and then we
will also contact the Police Department to see if someone can be here to
at least answer some of these questions.
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Pontanilla.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Taguchi.
MR. TAGUCHI: The committee sent a letter to the Principal of Kamehameha III
Elementary School on March 8th requesting, well, actually inviting their
participation at today's Council committee meeting just for your
information.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, thank you.
MR. ARAKAWA: Mr. Chairman, also.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Arakawa.
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MR. ARAKAWA: Our staff did talk with the Principal this morning and we were
informed that someone was going to be here but apparently they are not
here.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Members, if there are no objections, I would
like to call a 15-minute recess. Hopefully, some of the people that we are
requesting can be here by that time so at this time we will reconvene at
10: 10. Recess.
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

9:55 a.m.
10:11 a.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: The Public Works and Traffic Committee is back into
session. At this time, Members, we don't have any representative from
the Maui Police Department, as well as Kamehameha III School here with
us this morning. Before I give you my recommendation, though, I would
like to point out that on your last item in your handout, in your booklets, we
did receive a correspondence from Steve France who is the Vice Principal
at King Kamehameha III Elementary School. Before the Chair gives his
recommendations ...
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: ... break, Member Molina cited some of his
concerns relative to this particular item. I too share his concerns as well. I
guess more specifically in this specific area, one, the Lahaina Restoration
Committee should also be included in the review of the recommendation.
The LahainaTown Action Committee should also have input in the request
by the school, and more specifically, we need to understand, I need to
understand, speaking for myself, how this will be physically enforced in an
area such as this, and I also would like to suggest, that perhaps the Chair
consider a site visit for us during these specific times, whether it be the
morning or the afternoon hours as well. Thank you very much, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much, Member Mateo. Members, any
more comments? Member Molina.
If it is your
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:
Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chairman.
recommendation to defer, I would again emphasize especially to the
school that this is a public safety matter and I want to express my
disappointment that there was no one here from the school that we could
ask questions of and to give us a more accurate picture for those of us
who would want it regarding the safety matters. So, again, I would
emphasize that the school please respond and send, whether it be the
administration from the school or a representative from the PTSA, it would
be very helpful, I believe, for me to make a decision. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any more questions? Okay, at this time the
Chair would like to give his recommendation in deferring this matter. But
prior to getting consensus the Chair would instruct our Analyst to send
correspondence to the various organizations for comments to the Traffic
Safety Council, the LahainaTown Action Committee, the Lahaina
Restoration Committee, as well as the West Maui Taxpayers Association
for comments. Also, in regards to the Maui Police Department, to ensure
that when we take up this matter again, that a representative from the
Police Department be present at this venue along with a representative
from Kam III Elementary School. In regards to the site visit, Mr. Taguchi,
regarding our budget for West Maui, when is that thing scheduled for?
MR. TAGUCHI: I will have to look into that. I am not quite sure if we could
conduct a site visit sort of like piggy backing on the budget hearings. We
generally, that the, Budget Committee generally discourages that from
occurring but I can check with the Budget Analysts and see if there's an
opportunity for us to do a site inspection at that time.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. So with that, Members, the Chair would like
to defer this item and take it up after the budget.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much. So this matter is deferred.
ACTION:

DEFER

9

COUNTY SPEED HUMP PROGRAM (C.C. No. 05-95)

CHAIR PONTANILLA: The last item on our agenda is Public Works 9 in regards
to County speed hump program.
This is a result of County
Communication 05-95. The purpose of the proposed bill is to allow the
Director of Public Works to establish a distance from a proposed speed
hump from which at least 80 percent of abutting property owners must
consent and a requirement for at least 80 percent property owners
consent on a particular block where a speed hump is to be placed. Add
the definition of a block, correct references to the name of the department
and director's title and to make grammatical changes. At this time, I'd like
to call upon Mr. Arakawa to give some comments.
MR. ARAKAWA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. This item pertains to a proposed
revision to the quote pertaining to speed humps. As you know, the speed
hump program has been in effect for about a decade and the Department
has implemented a number of speed humps all over the County and has a
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number of pending completed applications awaiting implementation. The
way the Department has administered the program has been to require
the concurrence of 80% of the owners along the particular segment of
street where speed humps are proposed to be installed. However, we
have been reminded by a member of the public that the code, the way it is
written, actually requires the consent of 80 percent of the owners within
500 feet of a proposed speed hump. In our review of the program,
actually, we have found that 500 feet is a distance, which in many cases
will require the consent of owners who do not access onto the particular
street where the speed humps are proposed. Whether these owners will
have any interest in installing the speed humps on another street is
questionable in our opinion. In most cases, it is the owners along a
particular street who are concerned about vehicular speeding and want
the speed humps installed on their street. Thus, the proposed bill has
been drafted which would require consent of 80 percent of the owners
whose properties abut the County highway within a specific block. The
proposed bill has been forwarded for this committee's review and
consideration.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Director. Members, any questions for the
Director in regards to this proposal?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. I don't have a
specific question relative to what the Director had just stated relative to the
proposal. I would, however, like to get some additional information from
the Director.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Mr. Director, this will have to do with
how far behind we are in reaching, I guess, the number of approved speed
humps, and what is that how far are we behind and how do you deal with
the backlog?
MR. ARAKAWA: Basically, when we receive a completed application it just goes
into the queue and it depends on how much funding we receive each
particular year. But right now the backlog is somewhere around two, two
and a half years once we receive a completed application until the time
that it can actually be constructed.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And the requested proposal then, is this proposed
proposal supposed to be to help expedite the request for additional speed
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humps, or what is the intent of this, since we are about two and a half
years behind?
MR. ARAKAWA: No, the intent is actually just to clarify an inconsistency that we
found. It was brought to our attention that actually the code requires, you
know, the consent of owners within 500 feet, and it was brought actually to
the attention of the previous director, and we had this bill drafted to
actually try to obtain the consent of 80 percent of the owners along that
particular stretch of street that we are talking about, as opposed to just
500 feet from the hump itself.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, to comply with code?
MR. ARAKAWA: To actually implement this program in what we feel would be a
more logical manner.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, and perhaps at a later time, Mr. Director, if
you are able to provide me for the two, two and a half years backlog, what
is the dollar value on this wait, in so far as the number of speed humps,
because I do not even know what the cost of a speed hump is?
MR. ARAKAWA: I can provide you some more information at least on the
pending applications that we have before the Department. I would also
mention though that in, new subdivisions as they come up before the
Department, the Council has passed an ordinance which would require
new subdivisions to install the traffic calming measures upon construction,
so that in the future these requests hopefully will diminish over time.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Mateo.
questions for the Director?

Members, any more

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Your recommendation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Before I give my recommendation I, just for clarity in
regards to how the Director will determine the proposed speed hump
program. You know, looking at this here, where a speed hump is to be
placed on a specific block, the consent of 80 percent of the property
owners whose respective properties abut the County highway within the
specific block. So when you are looking at a block, a block would be, you
know, I'll take an example. In regards to in Kahului, where the community
center is located, going down to the community center is Uhu Street and
towards Wailuku you have Papa Avenue and in between you do have side
streets so a specific block would be taken in regards to those side streets
when you look at the whole thing?
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MR. ARAKAWA: That's correct. Whenever there is a cross street that would
form a specific block.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And as far as the hump, if there is no hump in existence
right now and within that block, someone requests for speed humps. Like
say, you take the first block and he has 80 percent of the property owners
in that block, so only that block gets speed hump?
MR. ARAKAWA: That would be correct. Yes. One other factor I should mention
and the specific street you are talking about, Uhu Street, is actually going
to be resurfaced but we would also take into account the condition of the
street as well, because obviously it doesn't make sense to put in a speed
hump on a street where, you know, the condition of the pavement
otherwise is pretty bad. So if a request, a completed application for speed
humps comes in, we would also try to have the street resurfaced at the
same time to prevent, you know, going back twice.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, coming back to the example from Uhu Street to
Papa, so you may have a block with speed humps and maybe two blocks
without speed humps.
MR. ARAKAWA: Yeah, depending on the specific application. That's correct.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So it wouldn't be a problem for, I guess, the other two
blocks. So if they wanted speed humps in their block they need to go get
80 percent of the property owners' signatures.
MR. ARAKAWA: That's correct.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you for that clarification. Members, at this time the
Chair will recommend that we send forward the approval of the proposed
bill and filing of County Communication No. 05-95.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much. All in favor say Aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, motion carried.
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VOTE:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
EXC.:

ACTION:

Councilmember Carroll, Mateo, Vice-Chair
Molina, and Chair Pontanilla.
None.
None.
None.
Councilmember Hokama.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, there's no more items on the agenda. At this
time, if there are no more discussions by each of you, this meeting is
adjourned.
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10:28 a.m.
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